FILED

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

ROY L. BEACH,
Appellant/Respondent
V.

CLERK, SUPREME GOURT By _______Chief Deputy Clerk

THE FLORIDA BAR,
Appellee/Complainant

Case No.: 85,0**8**5 [TFB Case No. 94-30,540 (90A)]

INITIAL BRIEF IN SUPPORT OF

EXCEPTION TO REPORT OF REFEREE

Roy L. Beach
1415 E. Robinson St.
Suite D
Orlando, FL 32801
(407)896-2099
Fla. Bar No.:306657
Respondent/Appellant

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Margery Rose filed a complaint with the Florida Bar complaining that she had not received certain documents which she had hired Kenneth King, a paralegal, to prepare. The Florida Bar investigated the relationship between the Respondent and Mr. King and the nature of the work performed by Mr. King. They concluded that Mr. King was engaged in the unauthorized practice of law and that the Respondent was helping him in that unauthorized practice as well as sharing legal fees with a non-lawyer. The Bar had also concluded that the Respondent had entered into an attorney/client relationship with Ms. Rose, that the Respondent had failed to properly safeguard Ms. Rose, had entered into a conflict of interest concerning the dispute between Mr. King and Ms. Rose and that the Respondent had used information from one client to the detriment of that client.

A trial was had before the Hon. Judge Herring and the Respondent denied all allegations against him. The Bar put forth the testimony of Ms. Rose and the transcripts of previous hearings before the Bar panels. The Respondent put forth the testimony of Mr. King and himself. Judge Herring eventually concluded that there was no attorney/client relationship between the Respondent and Ms. Rose and that the allegations against the Respondent which were based on such a relationship failed. The hearing officer also concluded that Mr. King was engaged in the unauthorized practice of law and that the Respondent

had assisted him in that unauthorized practice and had shared legal fees with a nonlawyer. A subsequent hearing was held for the purposes of determining an appropriate sanction and the Respondent testified at that hearing. The Bar put forth no witnesses at that hearing. The Bar, which had planned on asking for a 91 day suspension upon winning on all counts, requested a 90 day suspension since it had only prevailed on two of the allegations against the Respondent and the Respondent had been previously disciplined. The Respondent submitted that a more appropriate penalty would be one which had a smaller suspension, perhaps followed by a period of supervision which would allow him to continue representing his clients.

The hearing officer recommended a 90 day suspension. The Respondent filed an Exception to Hearing Officer's Recommendation which contested the sufficiency of the evidence finding the unauthorized practice of law and the severity of the recommended punishment. The Exception has been accepted by this Court as a petition for review. The Bar has cross-petitioned the determination of those points found adversely to them and seeks the imposition of a harsher sentence.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

The Respondent had entered into an agreement wherein the Respondent would review any legal documents prepared by Mr.

King to check for their legal sufficiency prior to those papers being given to the individuals who hired Mr. King. In addition, the Respondent would give a thirty minute consultation to any such individuals. Mr. King would charge his customers for the work done on their behalf and his list of charges included an amount for review of the paperwork by the Respondent and a consultation with him. Mr. King would pay the Respondent a fixed amount for that review and consultation. That amount was paid regardless of the amount actually received by Mr. King.

Mr. King would schedule and appointment to see the potential customer and would get information from that customer concerning the problem at hand. Mr. King would then consult with the Respondent to determine what paperwork would be needed and he would then report back to the customer. The customer would then be quoted a price and, if agreeable, Mr. King would be hired by the customer. The customer would be told upfront that they were not hiring the Respondent, that the service being offered was an alternative to hiring a lawyer and that they would be representing themselves before the judge. The customer signed a document acknowledging their self-representation. Mr. King would then prepare the documents and submit them to the

Respondent for review and correction before giving them to the customer. If the customer wished to avail themselves of the consultation with the Respondent, such would be arranged.

Ms. Rose had hired Mr. King to prepare paperwork concerning a visitation problem she had with her ex-husband. Mr. King followed the procedure outlined above and prepared the paperwork as requested by Ms. Rose. After the work was done Ms. Rose changed her mind about visitation and wanted to change primary residential care and control. Mr. King, after consulting with the Respondent, changed the paperwork as requested. Ms. Rose then changed her mind again and only wanted visitation. A dispute arose between Mr. King and Ms. Rose as to whether or not the paperwork had been prepared and over her perceived inability to have a consultation with the Respondent. Mr. King eventually submitted a bill to Ms. Rose showing her the amount of time and effort put forth on her behalf and pointing out that she had received services far in excess of that which she had originally contracted and paid for. Mr. King never sought to collect the excess money that he was entitled to under the terms of his agreement with Ms. Rose.

Ms. Rose eventually sued Mr. King in small claims court and, after court ordered mediation, they entered into an agreement wherein Mr. King would pay her one-half $(\frac{1}{2})$ of her filing fee and deliver the papers to her ex-husband within a certain time frame. When the process server hired by Mr. King was unable to deliver the papers as specified, Ms. Rose sought

a default for the full amount that she had paid. Such a judgment was entered.

Ms. Rose then filed a complaint with the Bar which was sent to the Respondent by the Bar. The sworn allegations in that complaint lead the Respondent to conclude that representations made to the trial court handling the case against Mr. King were contrary to the sworn allegations made against the Respondent The Respondent, who had never met or talked with Ms. Rose, then sought to get the judgment against Mr. King vacated based upon the information supplied to the Bar by Ms. Rose and which was, in turn, supplied to the Respondent by the Bar. The information given to the county trial court came strictly from the information supplied to the Bar by Ms. Rose. The judgment was vacated and the matter was set for trial but Ms. Rose dismissed that complaint a few days later.

At the trial held herein, Ms. Rose testified that she never considered the Respondent to be her attorney in any manner and that she had hired Mr. King to prepare paperwork for her and that she had indeed signed an acknowledgment that she would be representing herself in court. Mr. King's testimony confirmed that testimony of Ms. Rose and explained the normal procedure used by him in preparing paperwork for his customers. He also testified that his service was set up as a lower cost alternative to people having to hire an attorney and was geared for lower and middle class income people who needed help in court but who could not afford an attorney.

After the trial, the hearing officer stated that he would have to review all of the evidence before he could make his decision. He would inform the parties of that decision as soon as possible and would, if needed, take testimony in mitigation should he determine that the Bar had proved it's case. The majority of the allegations against the Respondent were dismissed by the hearing officer who found that there was no attorney/ client relationship between the Respondent and Ms. Rose but that Mr. King had engaged in the unauthorized practice of law. A subsequent hearing was held and the Respondent testified as to the nature of his practice (small, one man firm with no associates able to take over his case load and protect his clients) and of the fact that he was representing ten (10) different clients who could not afford to hire another attorney and who would be greatly harmed if the Respondent was suspended as requested by the Bar.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

It is incumbent upon the Florida Bar to prove, by clear and convincing evidence, that the Respondent violated the rules governing the Florida Bar before he can be disciplined for violating those rules. The Bar failed to present any evidence, let alone "clear and convincing evidence", that Mr. Kenneth King was engaged in the unauthorized practice of law. If Mr. King was not engaged in the unauthorized practice of law, then the Respondent could not possibly have helped him in that unauthorized practice nor could he have shared legal fees with a nonlawyer. The Referee's finding of an infraction of the rules should be vacated.

Even if the record supports a finding that Mr. King engaged in the unauthorized practice of law, the penalty imposed by the Referee does not take into account the mitigating evidence submitted at the penalty phase of the proceedings below and, as a result, is too harsh and should be reduced.

I. THE BURDEN OF PROOF WAS ON THE FLORIDA BAR TO SHOW BY CLEAR AND CONVINCING EVIDENCE THAT THE RESPONDENT ASSISTED ANOTHER IN THE UNAUTHORIZED PRACTICE OF LAW AND THAT HE SHARED A LEGAL FEE WITH A NONLAWYER. THE BAR FAILED IN THAT PROOF.

The Referee has found that the Respondent has helped a third party, Kenneth King, to engage in the unauthorized practice of law and that the Respondent shared legal fees with a non-lawyer, to wit Mr. King. In order to make such a finding, the Bar had the burden of proving such acts by clear and convincing evidence.

This Court, in the case of <u>Florida Bar v. McCain</u>, 361 So.2d 700 (Fla. 1978) stated that:

"The evidence presented by the Bar must be clear and convincing before we may find that the code governing lawyers has been breached." at 706.

The evidence before the Referee is not clear and convincing.

The unrefuted testimony presented below was that Mr. King would interview people who had problems relating to dissolution and post-dissolution matters. Mr. King would then consult with the Respondent about the information gathered and about what the person wanted to be done. The Respondent would instruct Mr. King as to what forms would be needed and how to prepare

them. Mr. King would relay this information to the person who would then have Mr. King prepare the documents for an agreed upon price. If a price was agreed upon, then Mr. King would draft the documents and submit them to the Respondent for review and approval before giving them to the person. The Respondent would also give the person a thirty minute consultation about his case. This consultation included advice on procedures and evidence. The person knew up front that he/she was not hiring the Respondent to represent him/her in court and that he/she would have to go before the judge by theirself to get the relief that they were seeking in the documents prepared by Mr. King. Mr. King never held himself out as a lawyer nor did he tell anyone that he would represent them in court in any way. Mr. King would pay the Respondent a certain amount for the consultation with the person and the review of the paperwork. The amount paid would vary based upon the amount of time needed to review a particular problem.

The unrefuted testimony then boils down to a nonlawyer gathering information and, based upon that information, preparing legal documents under the supervision of an attorney.

This Court, in the case of <u>The Florida Bar re: Advisory</u>
Opinion - Nonlawyers Preparation of Living Trusts, 613 So.2d
426 (Fla. 1992) held that:

[&]quot;... gathering the necessary information for the living trust does not constitute the practice of law, and non-lawyers may properly perform this activity." at 428.

In <u>Florida Bar v. Larkin</u>, 298 So.2d 371 (Fla. 1974) this Court stated that:

"We ... find that the respondent's preparation of wills and antenuptial agreements for others, both of which affect important rights of persons under the law, WITHOUT THE REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF AN ATTORNEY LICENSED TO PRACTICE IN THIS STATE, constitutes the unauthorized practice of law." at 373. (Emphasis added.)

It is pointed out that it was not the preparation of wills and antenuptial agreements by a nonlawyer that constituted the unauthorized practice of law. It was the preparation of those documents WITHOUT THE REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF AN ATTORNEY LICENSED TO PRACTICE IN THIS STATE, that constituted the unauthorized practice of law.

Mr. King was engaged in two activities that this Court has already stated did not constitute the unauthorized practice of law. He gathered information necessary for the preparation of legal documents (Florida Bar re: Advisory Opinion, supra.) and he prepared legal documents affecting the rights of others, which documents were reviewed and approved by an attorney licensed to practice in this state prior to giving those documents to the person (Larkin, supra.)

The Referee concluded that Mr. King's consulting with the Respondent after obtaining information from the person and the telling the person what the Respondent had told Mr. King would be needed in the way of documents to handle that person's particular problem was no different than Mr. King going to the

law library, researching the matter, and then telling the person what to do. That conclusion is flawed.

In the case of Florida Bar v. Florida Service Bureau, Inc., 581 So.2d 900 (Fla. 1991), the Bar tried to convince this Court that the Respondent therein was engaged in the unauthorized practice of law. In that case the Respondent, which assisted landlords in eviction cases, told customers (which included undercover investigators for the Bar) what the eviction procedure entails but gave no legal advice and did not charge for that information. In finding no UPL violation this Court noted that:

"The information given was no greater than that which anyone could glean from reading the eviction statute." at 901.

There is no evidence that Mr. King told anybody any thing which could not be readily gleaned from reading the dissolution statutes or that he charged any money for that information.

So even if we assume that Mr. King's relaying to the person what the Respondent told Mr. King is no different from Mr. King's going to the library and reading the statutes before reporting to the person, this Court has already ruled that such action does not constitute the unauthorized practice of law. He would have been doing nothing different from the Respondent in the Florida Services case, supra; to wit telling the person what the dissolution or post-dissolution proceedings entailed (which information is readily gleaned from a reading of the dissolution statute) without giving them any legal advice.

In addition, the library, as noted by this Court in the Florida Service case, supra, is full of books written by people who, although they may be licensed in other jurisdictions, are not necessarily licensed to practice law in Florida. If a lay person were to read one of those books and follow the advice contained therein, the author is not charged with the unauthorized practice of law. If the original author of a book on legal matters is not guilty of UPL, then how could the mere repeating of what may be in that book be UPL? If repeating what is in a book is not the giving of legal advice, then how can the repeating to a third party of what an attorney told you constitute UPL? What constitutes UPL is the giving of legal advice. There is no evidence that Mr. King gave any advice to anybody other than his repeating what the Respondent told him.

There is, however, a major difference between Mr. King's going to a library to research a matter and Mr. King's going to the Respondent for direction in how to handle a particular problem. The major difference is that going to the law library would not give Mr. King the benefit of an analysis of the fact specific situation that going to a trained attorney would provide. The books in the library cannot tailor an opinion or legal decision to the specific facts of a particular case.

Thus there is a major difference between Mr. King consulting with the Respondent and reporting back to someone and his researching case law and reporting back to that same person. The second course of action does not give the recipient

the benefit of a trained lawyer's insight and experience as applied to that particular set of facts.

The Referee found that when Mr. King (Mr. X) took down data from a third person (Ms. Y), consulted with the Respondent about the specific legal matter of concern (problem) to that third person (Ms. Y), then reported back to that third person (Ms. Y) what Mr. King had been told by a licensed attorney, Mr. King committed UPL. That conclusion, in addition to being contrary to this Court's opinions in the Florida Bar re:

Advisory Opinion case, the Larkin case, supra, and the Florida Service case supra, is too broad and would apply to too many different fact situations.

If a husband (Mr. X) consulted with an attorney about the financial difficulties (problem) of his new wife (Ms. Y) as a result of her former divorce, and then told his wife everything the attorney told him and what the attorney recommended that Ms. Y do about the problem, then under the Referee's line of reasoning the husband (Mr. X) has committed UPL.

If the Chairman of the Board of General Motors (Ms. Y) tells a vice president of the company (Mr. X) that she is concerned with a series of complaints and a possible product liability case (problem) and asks Mr. X to consult with an attorney and report back with recommended courses of action, then the vice president, using the line of reasoning of the Referee, would be guilty of UPL if he followed his boss's instructions.

There is no fundamental difference between the above two scenarios and what Mr. King did.

The Referee makes a finding that Mr. King's actions are different from those of a paralegal employed by a law firm.

This finding is flawed as there is no evidence before the Referee to support such a conclusion. The only testimony presented to the Referee was the testimony of the complaintant Ms. Rose,

Mr. King, and the Respondent.

Ms. Rose never testified about the standard practice of a paralegal in a law firm. She testified about her involvement with Mr. King and the Respondent.

Mr. King never testified about the practices of paralegals in a law firm. He only testified about his involvement with Ms. Rose and the Respondent.

The Respondent never testified about what is or is not the normal practice of a paralegal in a law firm. Indeed, as the Referee pointed out, the Respondent argued that the actions of Mr. King were no different from the actions of a paralegal in a law firm. Assuming that the Respondent's argument can be taken as testimony of what constitutes normal paralegal activity, then the Referee's conclusion directly contradicts that UNREFUTED testimony. At no time did the Bar ask for or receive judicial notice of what constitutes the normal practice of a paralegal nor did it present any evidence of the same.

As was stated in the case of <u>Florida Bar v. Nue</u>, 597 So.2d 266 (Fla. 1992):

"In bar discipline proceedings, the referee MUST find the evidence of a lawyer's misconduct proven by clear and convincing evidence." at 268. (Emphasis supplied.)

Even if we accept that the standard of clear and convincing evidence is a lesser burden than a preponderance or greater weight of the evidence, it still requires SOME evidence before a conclusion can be made. The Referee made a conclusion that Mr. King's activities are different from those of a paralegal employed by a big law firm and yet there is no evidence in this record that would allow anyone to conclude what a paralegal in a big law firm does or does not do.

Is there any testimony that a big firm paralegal does not collect information from people with legal problems? No.

Is there any testimony that a big firm paralegal does not convey the collected information to an attorney for the attorney to analyze? No.

Is there any testimony that an attorney, after reviewing the collected information, does not tell the big firm paralegal what would be needed in the way of documents to correct the problem and to pass that information on to the person with the legal problem at hand? No.

Is there any testimony that the person affected does not then instruct the big firm paralegal to proceed as instructed by the attorney? No.

Is there any testimony that the paralegal in the big firm does not then proceed to draft the documents in question for review and approval by an attorney? No.

Is there any testimony that a paralegal in a law firm never prepares paperwork for a client to use pro se? No.

Is there any testimony that the papers, after being reviewed by an attorney, are not given to the person by the big firm paralegal? No.

Is there any testimony that clients of a big firm always talk with an attorney in that firm before taking the paperwork with them? No.

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