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

On page 15 of their Brief, the Bar makes reference to a "feeder operation" and to the Respondent's improperly acquiring clients through that operation. This was never argued below

and the Respondent was never required to defend against such a position. It is patently unfair to bring up a new matter not argued below and ask this Court to approve the lower tribunal's decision based on an argument that the Referee did not consider and that the Respondent had no opportunity to rebut.

On page 16 of their Brief, the Bar makes the assumption that the Respondent's use of King and King as a conduit could result in the wrong advice being given based upon faulty communication. They state, with no citation to the record to point out the evidence supporting their statement, that a real danger existed that Mr. King could have misinterpreted or misunderstood what he had been told by the Respondent and thus passed wrong information on to Ms. Rose. Again, this point was never mentioned below and the Respondent was never given an opportunity to rebut. The Respondent would point out that there is no evidence in the record below to even suggest that the perceived harm (wrong advice being given based upon faulty communication) ever occurred or that such harm never occurs in a law firm which employs paralegals. The burden of proof is on the Bar, not the Respondent. Florida Bar v. McCain, 361 So.2d 700 (Fla. 1978) and Florida Bar v. Nue, 597 So.2d 266 (Fla. 1992). The Bar HAS to present evidence on a point before the Respondent is required to address the issue with his proof.

On pages 16 and 17 of their Brief, the Bar argues that the public would be mislead into thinking that they would be

"... getting the safeguards of a lawyer at a discount price." Where is the evidence to support the argument that the public did not get "...the safeguards of a lawyer at a discount price."? They argue that the arrangement between the Respondent and Mr. King is "... even more egregious than a nonlawyer giving legal advice after conducting legal research." (page 17). What kind of fuzzy thinking leads to that conclusion? A nonlawyer's passing on of information from an attorney to a third party is WORSE than a nonlawyer reading a book and then passing on information to a third party?

On page 17 of their Brief, the Bar argues that the poor do not deserve "... substandard representation by an attorney who hides behind a paralegal service." Where is the citation to the record which contains the evidence that the service that Ms. Rose received was substandard? Where is the pleading that put the Respondent on notice that he was going to have to defend himself against allegations that the work done for Ms. Rose was substandard or legally defective? There are none because the Bar never charged that the work done was substandard and the Bar never put forth any testimony that would support such a conclusion. The closest the Bar comes is Ms. Rose's statements that there were problems with the paperwork prepared for her but she did not know what was wrong. The Bar is, once again, arguing facts and matters not presented to the Referee in a blatant attempt to prejudice this Court against the Respondent and thus shift attention away from their utter failure to put

forth any "competent, substantial evidence" to support the charges levied against the Respondent.

The Bar argues that the case at bench is similar to the case in <u>The Florida Bar v. Consolidated Business and Legal Forms,</u> <u>Inc.</u>, 386 So.2d 797 (Fla. 1980). Let's look at that case more closely. In that case, nonlawyer owners of the business exercised control over the lawyers working for the business. Is there any evidence that a nonlawyer exercised any form of control over the Respondent here? No.

In that case, the attorneys were encouraged to use standardized forms because forms meant a higher turn over of clients and resulted in a higher compensation to the attorneys. Is there any evidence that the Respondent here was encouraged to do any work in a certain manner because the usage of forms, etc., would give the Respondent a higher rate of compensation? No.

In that case, the nonlawyer owners set policy which limited the amount of fees to be charged and which limited the amount of time that a client was allowed to spend with the attorney. Is there any evidence that anybody other than the Respondent herein established any policy limiting the amount of fees that the Respondent would charge or the amount of time that the Respondent would spend with any individual on that person's case? No.

In that case, the Referee found that the manner of operating the business caused a conflict between the company's profit motive and the client's legal needs. Is there any evidence that

the manner of operation of the Pro Se Assist program caused a conflict between a profit motive and the person's legal needs? No.

In what manner then does the case before this Court compare with the case in <u>Consolidated Business</u>? There is only one. An alleged harmed inflicted on one customer, Ms. Rose and that harm can only be sustained IF Mr. King gave legal advice other than what the Respondent told him to pass on. The Bar's conclusion that the "... only difference between the respondent's arrangement with King and King and the situation with Consolidated Business and Legal Forms, Inc. is that the respondent was an independent contractor instead of an employee." (Page 19) is totally without support in the record, was not argued below, and is another example of the Bar trying to convict the Respondent at any costs, regardless of the merits or fairness of the methods used.

The case of <u>The Florida Bar v. Schultz</u>, 613 So.2d 11 (Fla. 1993) cited by the Bar in it's Brief is readily distinguishable from the case before the Court. In <u>Schultz</u> the proposed clients were lead to believe that the respondent attorney would be drafting the paperwork for them and would be, in essence, their attorney in that transaction. This was not the case and the respondent in <u>Schultz</u> actually went so far as to sue the proposed clients on behalf of the company which had wanted to sell the clients a living trust. In this case, the proposed customer was told upfront that the Respondent would not be representing

them and the proposed customer would sign a written acknowledgment to that effect. Indeed, Ms. Rose, the complainant below, signed just such an acknowledgment.

The Bar has failed to point to any evidence which would support the Referee's findings that Mr. King had engaged in the unauthorized practice of law and, accordingly, that the Respondent had helped Mr. King in his UPL. There is no competent, substantial evidence to support that conclusion. This Court disapproved the referee's findings and stated in <u>The Florida</u> <u>Bar in re Inglis</u>, 471 So.2d 38 (Fla. 1985):

"... we must accept the referee's findings of facts UNLESS they are not supported by competent, substantial evidence." at 41. (Emphasis added.)

The Referee's findings of fact that Mr. King engaged in UPL are not supported by competent, substantial evidence and must be disapproved. Any sanctions imposed as a result of those faulty findings of fact should be vacated.

II. THE REFEREE CORRECTLY CONCLUDED THAT THERE WAS NO ATTORNEY CLIENT RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE RESPONDENT AND MS. ROSE.

In it's Brief, page 27, the Bar points out that a potential exists for conflict in an instance where an attorney gets paid

for preparation of documents for an individual by a corporation trying to sell those documents to the individual if the attorney becomes more concerned with earning the money than in adequately protecting the client. The Bar cites to <u>Florida Bar re Advisory</u> Opinion, supra. The Bar then points out that the Respondent

"... was paid by the paralegal service for every case he reviewed, regardless of whether or not the customer actually needed to take a legal action."

This is a fine example of the Bar's total lack of understanding of the poor state of the record below. The Respondent never testified that he got paid if the consumer did not hire Mr. King. Nor did any other witness. Just like any other lawyer who is in business for himself, the Respondent only gets paid if a consumer engages his services. If nobody engaged the services of Mr. King, then there would have been no paperwork prepared and with no paperwork prepared there would be nothing for the Respondent to review. No review, no payment. It would be very easy for the Respondent to accept the erroneous contention of the Bar as he could then argue that his getting paid regardless of whether or not the consumer hired Mr. King would evidence a sound reason for the Respondent to be impartial since his telling the consumer that no paperwork was needed would not cause the Respondent any financial hardship. It would be easy, but it would be wrong both ethically and factually.

The Bar, on page 28 of it's Brief, stated that:

"Instead, the respondent and King and King kept

-9

generating additional documents at Ms. Rose's expense."

That statement is diametrically opposed to the unrefuted testimony of Mr. King. Mr. King stated, clearly and concisely, that Ms. Rose was only charged for the initial set of paperwork that was prepared on her behalf. This paperwork, after completion, was changed several times at her request and neither Mr. King nor the Respondent ever sought any more money from her as a result. This is so even though the contract that she had signed, and which was introduced in evidence by the Bar, clearly stated that any additional work performed would call for additional fees for the extra services rendered. Mr. King even went so far as to prepare a bill for Ms. Rose which showed that the work that had been done on her behalf would have cost her twice what she had paid initially. The UNREFUTED TESTIMONY clearly shows that work above and beyond that originally contracted for by Ms. Rose was done for her at NO COST to her. The conclusion that the Respondent and Mr. King "...kept generating additional documents at Ms. Rose's expense." is unsupported by the evidence and was not argued at trial below.

The Bar, in it's Brief, page 28, goes on to state:

"Further, the respondent determined what legal documents were necessary based upon a layperson's untrained assessment as to what information was important

Did the Bar read the trial transcript? Did the Bar even read it's own Brief? On page 14 of the Bar's Brief, the Bar states:

"... the respondent told Mr. King TO ASK FOR MORE INFORMATION to maybe beef up the petition. This is what she has to establish: the change of circumstances and so forth." (Emphasis supplied.)

The Bar on page 28 of it's Brief is trying to convince this Court that the Respondent made his recommendations based on Mr. King's untrained assessment of the situation and yet on page 14 of that same Brief they cite to the transcript evidence which clearly established that the Respondent instructed Mr. King to gather additional information and what type of information to gather!!

The Bar, on page 24 of it's Brief stated that:

"Although Mr. King testified that the county court directed Mr. King to have the respondent represent him despite being aware of Mr. King's intention to call the respondent as a witness, the respondent presented no evidence to support this...".

NO EVIDENCE? What does counsel for the Bar call sworn testimony given before a judge under penalty of perjury? Jello? Mr. King was put under oath and questioned before the Referee. He was subject to cross-examination by the Bar's attorney, and the Respondent believes he was even questioned by the Referee, but the Respondent does not have a copy of the trial transcript and thus cannot state such for certain. There was clearly evidence on the point. The weight of the evidence was for the Referee, not the Bar, to determine.

The Bar cites <u>The Florida Bar v. Davis</u>, 419 So.2d 325 (Fla. 1982) for the proposition that an attorney owes a duty, in certain cases, to third parties and that he can be disciplined

for a breach of that duty. That case is readily distinguished from the case at bench.

In <u>Davis</u>, supra, the Respondent sold time shares in a piece of real estate titled to certain corporations of which he was a part owner, officer and director. When foreclosure loomed, they continued to sell time shares. When the foreclosure was complete, the innocent purchasers lost their time shares. This Court felt that the respondent, upon learning of the foreclosure, should have immediately stopped the sell of time shares to the public and because he did not do so, then he had engaged in conduct in violation of the Florida Bar Rules. The respondent knew that he could not deliver the clear title to the purchasers as promised and yet he continued to sell time shares and make the promises which he knew he could not fulfill.

In the case before the Court, no promises of any kind were made to Ms. Rose which could not be carried out. The Referee found, from the clear and uncontradicted testimony of Ms. Rose, that she never intended the formation of an attorney client relationship between her and the Respondent and she never, at any time, viewed the Respondent as her attorney. She signed a written acknowledgment stating that she knew she would be representing herself and that any kind of representation by the Respondent would have to be negotiated between her and the Respondent. The formation of an attorney client relationship in this case is a fiction which only the Bar believes existed and not any of the people outside of the ivory tower of the

The Bar, on page 24 of it's Brief, submitted that:

"... the attorney-client privilege can only exist where some form of attorney-client relationship has been established,...".

This conclusion ignores the clear wording of The Preamble of the Rules of Professional Conduct quoted by the Bar on the page immediately proceeding. The Preamble, as quoted by the Bar, states that:

"Most of the duties flowing from the client-lawyer relationship ATTACH ONLY AFTER THE CLIENT HAS REQUESTED THE LAWYER TO RENDER LEGAL SERVICES AND THE LAWYER HAS AGREED TO DO SO. But there are some duties, such as that of confidentiality under Rule 4-1.6, which MAY attach when the lawyer agrees to consider whether a client-lawyer relationship SHALL BE ESTABLISHED." (Emphasis supplied.)

The Preamble does not support their position. The Preamble states that the duty of confidentiality MAY attach when a lawyer agrees to consider WHETHER OR NOT A CLIENT-LAWYER RELATIONSHIP SHOULD BE ESTABLISHED. It does not condition the attorney-client confidentiality upon the establishment of an attorney-client relationship. The privilege attaches upon a lawyer's contemplation of representing the client. The failure of the lawyer to agree to represent the person, or the person's decision not to hire the attorney, does not negate the confidentiality privilege. The Bar wants this Court to hold that ANY kind of contact between a lawyer and a consumer establishes an attorney client relationship regardless of the intent or wishes of the

Bar.

parties involved. This is clearly contrary to the Preamble and is unjustified.

The Bar, in it's Brief, pages 27 and 28, makes much ado about the Respondent's failure to state that he never:

"... advised the Kings that no documents would be needed for an individual because that person's legal needs did not require the preparation of any documents. There is no indication that the paralegal service, whose nonlawyer employees conducted all initial interviews, told any customer, after consulting with respondent, that no legal documents were needed."

It is true that no such evidence was presented to the Referee BUT it is equally true that there is no evidence that the Respondent did not do just that. Testimony of what the Respondent and Mr. King did or did not do in other instances was NOT MATERIAL to the charges before the Referee and thus the Respondent did not attempt to present any such evidence. The burden of proof was on the BAR, not the Respondent, to come up with "clear and convincing evidence" to establish a violation by the Respondent. <u>McCain</u>, supra. Since when does NO EVIDENCE equal CLEAR AND CONVINCING EVIDENCE? It doesn't. The Bar is trying, once again, to convict the Respondent on "evidence" which is not in the record and on a point that was not argued below so as to give the Respondent a chance to refute it or for the Referee to consider.

The Bar, on page 25 of it's Brief, argues that even if Ms. Rose is not considered a client, then the Respondent still triggered a conflict of interests when his interests became

adverse to Ms. Rose's in the civil suit. The Bar then takes four pages and still it fails to explain what the conflict of interest is that the Respondent triggered. The Respondent points out that the clear language of the Rules which the Bar accused the Respondent of violating all require an attorney client relationship. So assuming that Ms. Rose is not considered a client (which assumption is well supported by the evidence presented to the Referee) then there can be no violation of the Rules which clearly requires an attorney client relationship.

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